
Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 1 

 Borough of Franklin Lakes 
Bergen County, New Jersey 

Planning Board Minutes 
August 17, 2016 

Regular Meeting 
 

Meeting Called to Order at 7:30PM 

 
Open Public Meetings Statement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 
Vierheilig 

 
Salutation to the Flag 

 
Preamble: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig 
 

Roll Call: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Messrs. Gostkowski (absent), 
Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Messrs. Lazerowitz, Linz, Sheppard, Ms. 

Mucci (absent), Mr. Ochs (absent) 
 
Fire Safety Announcement: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig 

 
Also in Attendance: Mark Madaio Esq., Board Attorney; Ms. Eileen Boland, Boswell 
Engineering/Board Engineer; JoAnn Carroll, Recording Secretary 

 

Board Discussion:  
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated she had received correspondence from Mr. Greg 
Hart, Borough Administrator, regarding the formation of the Recreation Facilities 
Planning Committee; memo read into the record; Mr. Hart would like to have at 

least one member of the Planning Board serving on this committee; this would give 
the Board an opportunity to discuss what is envisioned for the Parson’s property; it 
is important that the Planning Board be represented on this Committee.  

 
Please note: Mr. Sheppard volunteered to be a part of the Recreation Facilities 

Planning Committee. 
 
Councilman Kahwahty: asked if he was already considered a part of this 

Committee. 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated no, but he could definitely join; they are looking for input 
from all Borough departments/committees. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated she would inform Mr. Hart that both Mr. Sheppard 
and Councilman Kahwaty have volunteered to be a part of this Committee. 
 

 

Approval of Minutes:  
July 27, 2016, Special Meeting: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 2 

All in Favor 
 

August 3, 2016: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty 
All in Favor 

 
Oral Communications: 

 
Mr. Rob Decker: stated he was the owner of the Franklin Square Shopping Center; 

he wanted to know how to proceed in order to add more parking to his site; he has a 
tenant whose business has become popular; submitted a hand out to the Board; 
superimposed some of his ideas onto the drawing submitted; there is currently room 

for more parking spaces because the disposal bins are no longer needed; was not 
sure if a variance would be needed. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated she believed a variance would be needed; the buffer is15 ft. 
except at a residential district which is 30 ft.; asked if the spots were 9x18. 

 
Mr. Decker: stated they were 9x20; was before the Board about 6-7 years ago to go 
from 10’ to 9’. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated an amended site plan would have to be submitted then the 

Board could approve everything or half of it; it seems the Board is understanding of 
the need for more parking; Mr. Decker’s site engineer would be the right person to 
speak with to discuss what variances would be required; the current parking spaces 

might be on the long side so he might be able to make adjustments that could help 
him. 

 

Franklin Lakes Realty, Colonial Pointe, 556 Colonial Road, Block 1411, Lot 2, 
Dumpster Location; on 1/21/04, the resolution states on page 20, dumpster 
setback, that the dumpster is not to be placed in front of building one 

 
Bruce Whitaker, Esq., McDonnell & Whitaker: applicant’s attorney; stated this 
development has a long history; there was a resolution in 2004 in which the Board 

granted a variance to eliminate the dumpster pad because the predecessors that 
were attempting to develop the property testified that there was no feasible location 

at building one; there is also noted in the resolution that a variance was granted 
without reason for no dumpster at building two but that building two would move 
the dumpster to building one; Ms. Boland, in doing her review, found this because 

the applicant was able to find a location so that each building would have its own 
dumpster on a pad fully shielded; the Board has this plan before them; a two page 
memo was submitted with the plan; the paragraph dealing with the dumpster 

setback is highlighted on page 20 of the resolution; request being made to have 
permission to put the dumpster where the location is shown on the site plan and 

therefore eliminate the variance relief which was granted in 2004. 
 
Mr. Madaio: asked if any new variances were created. 

 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 3 

Mr. Whitaker: stated no; looking to amend the resolution; seeking approval of the 
two dumpster pads shown on the preliminary final site plan with a revision date 

through 7/18/16; the other aspect of the amended site plan is the request to install 
one sign along the roadway to show the area is environmentally sensitive; this is 

also shown on the plan.  
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the elevation of the sign was shown. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the purpose of the sign is to make the public aware of the 
status of the area; the sign is indicated on the plan; the sign is a requirement from 

the State; it is called an ESA sign; the dumpster locations are shown in the boxes. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the dumpster locations could be adjacent to one 
another.  
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated now there can be a dumpster location for both buildings.   
 

Mr. Madaio: stated the single dumpster scenario is no longer necessary; there is a 
dumpster location available to serve the second building; no variances are required; 
asked if the Board had any objections to amending the site plan. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated there is a reserved parking space so that someone has to be 
available to remove the car for the dumpster to be accessible.      

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the reserved parking space is for the superintendent; the 

coordinator for the refuse being removed is the superintendent; it is done on a 
schedule; he would remove his car when he knows they are coming; they use a 
private hauler. 

Mayor Bivona: asked is access to that parking spot was needed in order to dump 
the garbage. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: state no; you just have to walk in. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the entrance to building one was affected when 
the dumpster location for building one was being serviced. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated a car would go around the truck for a short period of time. 
 

Ms. Boland: stated there is a good chance the dumpsters would not be returned to 
the enclosures; if so, the dumpster entrances could be blocked by a car; wants to 
make sure this doesn’t happen. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it can be stated in the resolution that the dumpsters will 
always remain inside their enclosures. 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the enclosures were bear-proof; they are having a bigger 

problem than usual in regards to bears. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 4 

Mr. Whitaker: stated they will have closed lids with bungee cords; they will be 
covered; will take the bear problem into account and do what is necessary to make 

the dumpsters bear-proof. 
 

Mr. Lauber: asked how the truck would access the dumpster. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated during the day the truck would do a k-turn; otherwise it could 

come to the throat of the driveway and back down the aisle; the dumpsters are 
rollable. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: stated he remembers this application from 12 years prior; the garbage 
disposal was supposed to be located inside building two and someone would bring it 

to building one; it wasn’t that the tenants of building one would walk across and go 
to building two. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated he read the resolution and it is very confusing. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: stated he agreed with the resolution because they couldn’t find a way 
to have a dumpster outside; we thought it was great when the applicant stated they 
didn’t need a dumpster outside of building two; the Board was satisfied with this; 

now the applicant is coming back and wants a dumpster outside. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the resolution states there is no location for the dumpster, but 

there is; the location is beyond the parking space; it is now feasible to place it there; 
dumpsters outside of the building are better from a fire safety standpoint. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: stated there is no fence currently associated with the dumpster. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated the applicant is seeking approval for a fence. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the Board was going to see the fence. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if there would be any screening of the dumpsters. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the dumpsters would be enclosed; there are no plantings that 
can be put in front of it because that is where the gate will be; the area is located 

just beyond a parking space; there is a row of cars there most of the time which will 
block the view; it will have an opaque vinyl face; the dumpster will not be seen. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the dumpster could be located behind the building. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated they did consider placing it behind the building but it puts it 
far away and not in a controllable location. 
 

Mr. Linz: stated it has to be 15 ft. from the building. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: asked if it encroached on the fire lane. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 5 

Mr. Whitaker: stated it is beyond it. 
 

No Public Comment 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated the applicant is requesting that the condition in paragraph 20 
and 21 of the original resolution be removed and that the final revision date of 
7/18/16 with the dumpster locations and the ESA sign be approved as part of an 

amended site plan. 
 
Mr. Lazerowitz: asked if testimony was needed or was the change done as a matter 

of law. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated it is on the record as presented; it could be a field change. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked why it can’t be left in the building since this worked in the past. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it never worked because the building was never up; none of 

that is specified in the resolution; from a safety aspect, it is much wiser to have it 
away from the building than in the building. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked about the details of the sign. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it is a State sign; not a large sign; like a fire lane sign; 12x18; 

it is just to make the public aware of the environmental nature of the site; no 
variances are needed for the sign. 

 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if additional plantings could be added because this area is 
close to the road; adding plantings that would catch the eye instead of looking at the 

fence would be great. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated he had met with the applicant at the site; the County said no 

to additional plantings. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated because of the sight distance the County wouldn’t allow more 
plantings; it could be a field change per Boswell’s approval. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated anywhere would be okay as long as it involves the applicant 
working with Boswell and the Shade Tree expert. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the applicant might be able to do something in the bump out 
aisle. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated that sounded good; asked the applicant to work 
with the Shade Tree expert so that the line of sight was not affected. 

 
Motion to modify the site plan in accordance with the request and eliminate 

that condition/variance: modify 2004 resolution; dumpsters have to remain in 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 6 

enclosures at all times; planting to be added with the approval of Boswell 
Engineering and the Borough’s Shade Tree expert: Councilman Kahwaty, Linz 

 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, 

Lazerowitz, Linz, Sheppard 

 

Resolution: Gabrellian & Jega, Franklin Avenue, Block 1518, Lots 2 & 5.01; 
Approved 

 
Mr. Madaio: reviewed the application and the resolution. 
 

Mr. Basralian: stated the applicant was not eliminating any of the spaces where the 
old septic system was located but was eliminating a space in the parking field itself; 

the wording seemed to be confusing. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the wording had already been changed; in addition, Mr. Madaio 

suggested the Board authorize the signing of a Developer’s Agreement; Mr. Smith, 
Borough Attorney, has reviewed the drafts of the Developer’s Agreement; it will be 
approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated the sewer lines are already in place; asked about the wording 

in regards to the sewer. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the point regarding the sewers was made on page one; the 

factual recitations were indicated in the first 6-8 paragraphs that the entire project 
is enabled by the fact that sewers have been hooked up. 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Linz, Pullaro, Chairwoman 

Vierheilig 

Approval of Resolution authorizing the signature of the Developer’s Agreement 
once approved by Mr. Smith; Motion for the Developer’s Agreement to be 
executed by Mr. Smith subject to Board comments: Mayor Bivona, Councilman 

Kahwaty 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig 

 

 
Resolution: Gabrellian & Franklin Lakes Towne Square, Franklin Avenue, Block 
1418, Lots 1-6; Block 1419, Lots 2, 7, 8, 8.01, 8.02, 21, 21.01, 22 & 26: 

Approved 
 
Mr. Madaio: reviewed application and resolution. 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the “whereas” clauses overrode the other items. 

 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 7 

Mr. Madaio: stated no; they are introductory; he tried to incorporate them by 
reference; doesn’t dictate what happened in the rest of the resolution; Mr. Madaio 

further stated that there will also be a resolution for the Developer’s Agreement for 
this project. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the Board would be able to review the Developer’s Agreements. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated yes; the Board is not precluded from reviewing them. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if comments on the Developer’s Agreement should be sent to 

Mr. Smith. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated he would discuss any Board comments with Mr. Smith; he does 
not want a Board member to feel they haven’t reviewed the documents; he will 
distribute them to the Board and will let Mr. Smith know if the Board has any 

comments/changes. 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Chairwoman Vierheilig 
Abstain: Pullaro 

 
Approval of Resolution authorizing the signature of the Developer’s Agreement 
once approved by Mr. Smith; Motion for the Developer’s Agreement to be 

executed by Mr. Smith subject to Board comments: Mayor Bivona, Councilman 
Kahwaty 

Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Chairwoman Vierheilig 

 
Schloesser/Mansmann, Major Subdivision, 233 & 237 Woodside Avenue, Block 
2703, Lots 3, 3.01 and a new proposed lot 

 
Bruce Whitaker, Esq.: applicant’s attorney; stated this is the continuation of the 
subdivision application; basically submitted testimony of the prior hearings as an 

overview; requesting to create one additional building lot by taking two lots and 
dividing them to have three lots; intention is for the applicant to build a third house 

to live in next to the applicant’s parents and brother; testimony and plans show 
they have three oversized lots in the R40 zone; the application is to provide for the 
road to be extended; the roadway is totally on the property the applicant owns; the 

approach is that one additional lot would not create an adverse impact from a 
zoning or planning standpoint; Mr. Weissman testified that further subdivision of 

the property would be impossible; there are two requests besides variance requests; 
also a modification to the prior resolution that originally granted the subdivision; 
before any other subdivision, the applicant had to come back and seek approval 

again and seek approval for the roadway as it currently is and approved; there were 
three issues from the last meeting:      
 

1. The Fire Official commented regarding the trimming of the trees along the 16 
ft. right of way so there is safe access for emergency vehicles; June 6, 2016 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 8 

correspondence from Mr. Linz; stipulated the requirements of NFPA 1141 
would be maintained by the property owners; Exhibit 1 marked. 

2. Mr. Weissman will explain the modifications that have been made per reports 
received from Boswell Engineering. 

3. Legitimate concerns made by Board members pertaining to properties in the 
future; future aspect was if a family member moved if the arrangement would 
exist at a later date; the roadway serves three lots already; would now service 

4; the Schloessers have agreed to take on all aspects of the drainage and road 
maintenance. 

 

Mr. Robert Weissman: still under oath; there was a concern by the neighbor to the 
north; Lot 2.02; this lot is serviced by the private roadway; submitted plans with a 

revision date of 5/20/16 which the Board had received; marked Exhibit 2; slightly 
different version of the original plans; Ms. Boland’s comments have been 
incorporated; there was a runoff problem with the neighbor; a swale is to be 

permanently installed at the northerly property line; introduced drainage to the 
northerly side of the travel way of Woodside Terrace to intercept drainage; 

introduced inlets and swales; this should alleviate any drainage concerns that exist 
in that area; large storage pipes shown in the access from Woodside Avenue; intent 
was to introduce a stormwater retention area to discharge to the wetlands on the 

easterly side of the property; will provide profiles if the application is approved; what 
is being proposed is an improvement to the overall drainage; by virtue of the 
additional lot, they are not exacerbating but correcting drainage conditions; the 

roadway and the access are adequate to serve one additional lot; it has been there 
for quite some time; the home has been there since 2001; gravel is appropriate in 

this location; some maintenance would be required in connection with the drainage 
being proposed; Mr. Weissman stated he had prepared a plan that showed drainage 
improvements that need to be installed and maintained; proposal of the applicant to 

have this done and maintained privately. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if any drainage or stormwater calculations had been done; 

stated he hadn’t heard any concrete stormwater calculations. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated the primary source of the concern for drainage is more 
surface run off that comes across the road; the actual proposed roadway primarily 
traverses southerly away from the area of concern; the neck of the cul-de-sac would 

go north to south; Lot 2.02 is not a part of the application but it is serviced by the 
roadway; the applicant has agreed to install a swale to allow interception of surface 

water that goes to that property; not part of the detention requirements that are 
part of the RSIS; stone surface of the roadway is not pavement; it does have the 
ability to percolate into the ground; still proposing to install retention systems; some 

preliminary calculations have been done; will provide detailed calculations with the 
100 year storm analysis if the application is approved; currently has the preliminary 
sizing of the system. 

 
Mr. Sheppard: stated the neighbor stated he was inundated with water; the 

applicant is now asking the Board to grant an additional subdivision; there is 
significant water coming off of the lots; adding impervious coverage and the 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 9 

applicant is just adding a swale; would like to see something more concrete that the 
water is being handled on the property. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated the water problem needs to be eliminated, not just improved. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated they are proposing a new lot completely removed from the 
area of concern; there are 2 interception points; the water problem will be 

eliminated with the proposed drainage system. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the entire new road would be gravel. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated if that was the Borough’s road, the Borough would be 
responsible for the drainage; the Borough would maintain it; if there was flooding 

the Borough would fix it; further stated his view is this is not a Borough road and it 
will not be improved to Borough standards so there can’t beany drainage issues 

ever; there are flooding issues and drainage issues; it is not fair that neighbors fight 
neighbors; the neighbors will not always be family members. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated the applicant has to provide drainage calculations to Boswell 
that show the lot that is being proposed and the impervious extension will not 
exacerbate the drainage conditions that presently exist; what is being proposed is by 

virtue of another lot it will resolve the current drainage that exists for the two lots 
that exist now. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated if the Borough were handling the project, all of the standards 
in building the road would have to be met. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated they have to conform so that the lot is not exacerbating the 
existing conditions and that the development that is being proposed has to meet 

drainage standards; the last part of this application deals with future obligations. 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated the drainage problem needs to be fixed; for it to not be 
exacerbated is not good enough. 
 

Mr. Sheppard: stated the drainage problem has to be fixed in total. 
 

Mr. Lazerowitz: asked if, other than a Hurricane Sandy situation, if what is being 
proposed would fix the site 100%. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated they are proposing a lot on the southerly side of the total 
area; completely removed from the area of concern with surface drainage to Lot 
2.02; any impact from the proposed construction has nothing to do with the 

drainage area he is discussing; the topography is such that the proposed lot which 
drains to the wetlands doesn’t have an impact on the area to the north; the area of 

concern consists of an area that drains from Mr. Schloesser’s lot drains across the 
existing driveway area and continues across Lot 2.02 into the southerly side of Lot 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 10 

2.03; being proactive, they introduced a swale which intercepts some of the water; 
they are taking a much larger step with the introduction of a drainage system with 

swales and inlets which will intercept all the water that continues that way now; will 
eliminate the flow to the NW; will pipe it down into the swale and to the wetlands 

area. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: asked if Mr. Weissman was confident that the proposal for the 

drainage for the roadway area that exists to the NW and the two existing lots can be 
solved and if it requires additional calculations they can be done; asked if what is 
being proposed will solve the existing problems.  

 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the drainage proposed would work whether the 
driveway was gravel or paved. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes. 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked if curbs were to be installed. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated they can be put in if they were directed to. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked, hydrologically, what the difference was between a swale and 

a curb with respect to drainage. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated they provide the same function as long as the swale is large 
enough; once the stormwater is intercepted, there is no way for it to continue to Lot 
2.02; there are large storm impacts to the shed in the back of Lot 2.02; that would 

also be eliminated by what is being proposed. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated she would request calculations to show the whole drainage area 

to the whole system not just from the one lot; wants to make sure it can handle all 
the contributing run off to that area. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated the neighbor testified this happens during a large storm; he 
would provide calculations that the storm system proposed is more than adequate 

to sustain and support; the system proposed is designed to handle a 100 year 
storm. 

 
Mr. Madaio: asked for clarification that there would be zero runoff and not zero 
increased runoff. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated any water that falls on Lot 2.02 would continue across 2.02; 

there will be zero net flow to the east and beyond. 
 
Mr. Madaio: asked for confirmation that there is zero runoff from any lot to any 

other lot. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 11 

Mr. Weissman: stated the intention was there would be no point that water would 
go from one lot to any other lot. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated for the lots the applicant controls, the answer is yes. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated they can’t control Lot 2.03; it is not their lot. 
 

Mr. Madaio: asked for confirmation that no water from lots 3.01, 3.02 or 3.03 
would travel to any other property. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated that was correct. 
 

Mr. Madaio: asked for confirmation that there would be zero runoff from the road to 
any property. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated that was correct; generally the flow of water goes to the 
wetlands and will continue to do so. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked what the difference in the grade if he were at the end of the cul-
de-sac looking at the intersection of the cul-de-sac and Woodside Terrace. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated there is about a foot difference. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: asked if the end of the cul-de-sac had a lower elevation than Woodside 
Terrace. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated there is a slight rise in one area that isolates the cul-de-sac 
area; anything in this area will flow to the east. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if there would be a portion of the cul-de-sac that would drain to 
Woodside. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated no; there is a high point in the area just after the bend that 

flows to the cul-de-sac area then a discharge to the wetlands area. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the water from Lot 3.01 comes across the road into Lot 2.02. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the lot to the west was going the other way. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated it will drain to the storage system towards the cul-de-sac; the 
cul-de-sac has no impact on this location; no impact to the northerly lot line. 
 

Mr. Madaio: asked if pitching the cul-de-sac that way was natural. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated that is the natural flow at this time. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 12 

Ms. Boland: stated it may not be right at the intersection; closer to the bulb. 
 

Mr. Weissman: referred to plans; perpendicular to the contours is where the water 
is going to flow; from the bend in the road down it has no impact on Lots 2.02 and 

2.03. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated Mr. Weissman was saying that it misses that lot; missing Lot 

2.02 but not pitching to the drainage system. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated the neighbor during his testimony showed pictures; asked if 

those pictures were any of the lots they were discussing. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated Lot 2.03 is to the north of Lot 2.02; they will be fine after the 
improvements. 
 

Ms. Boland: stated by stopping it on Lot 2.02 it won’t go to Lot 2.03; Lot 2.03 was 
the lot having the issue. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if there would be any improvements to the road 
from Lot 3.01 to Woodside. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated no; it will remain as it is. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if that was the part where the trees were being cut 
and if curbs were being proposed. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes and no curbs were being proposed; the curb from the 
property line all the way back could be extended to the westerly property line of Lot 

3.01. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated a curb is preferable and requires less maintenance. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated they will then install a curb. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked why a curb was not being installed all the way to 
Woodside. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated it can be extended. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked how it would all drain. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated there is a high point near the road then it drains down; there 
has never been a drainage issue there out to Woodside Avenue; the gravel road 
absorbs a lot with percolation below. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked how the system would be maintained. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated that would be discussed. 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 13 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked how big was the roadway. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated there is a 16 ft. portion on the south side of Woodside 

Terrace; 16 ft. easement along the southerly sides of Lots 2 and 2.01 where there 
are presently no improvements and no intent for improvements. 
 

Mayor Bivona: asked how wide the path was currently. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated 16 ft.; it is on the applicant’s property. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated there are two 16 ft. wide easements next to each other; the top 

easement is not developed; the bottom is Woodside Terrace; the 16 ft. wide 
easement across Lots 2.02 and 2.01 is undeveloped and it dead ends into Lot 2.02; 
the 16 ft. wide bottom easement is the one that is graveled to 16 ft. in width and is 

Woodside Terrace. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the 16 ft. width was wide enough for emergency 
access. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated yes, per Mr. Linz’ letter. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked why the road could not be bigger. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated because the applicant does not have the ability to make 

improvements on the easement; can go across it, but can’t improve it without 
permission; has been advised that the owners of the easement do not want it 
improved. 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked about installing curbing. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated they can put in curbing starting at the high point of the 
westerly sideline of Lot 3.01. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the other side is not currently creating any problems. 
 

Mr. Linz: stated widening the turn and going onto the new drive had been 
discussed. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated it was widened from the original plan. 
 

Mr. Mark Lane, 231 Woodside Avenue: sworn in by Mr. Madaio: not agreeing to 
curbing; agreed to swale; existing improvements done have not worked; moved to 
that area because it was a dirt road; who will be responsible for the road and 

drainage; there is a huge drainage problem currently; nothing has been fixed. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 14 

Mr. Weissman: stated the drain can be shifted to the south side of the proposed 
roadway and curbing could be placed along the south side of the roadway within the 

Schloesser property; will intercept water before it gets to the roadway. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated Mr. Lane testified that the swale that was installed is not 
working well. 
 

Mr. Weissman: stated the curbing and the drainage can all go on the applicant’s 
property; will discharge down a similar location but more southerly. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: asked if there would be drainage coming across the mouth of the cul-
de-sac. 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated the curbing would be extended southerly along the westerly 
side of the proposed roadway; showed an inlet on the SW side of the bend. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if a trench drain could be placed coming across the cul-de-sac to 

catch everything. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated it can be introduced; a trench drain can be placed across the 

roadway. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: marked Exhibit A3; outline pertaining to the Homeowner’s 

Association; has prepared Homeowner’s Association documents on behalf of large 
and small developers where there are private roads and drainage involved; if the 

Board were to approve the application, the actual document would be subject to the 
Board and Mayor and Council approval; a corporation is formed at the developer’s 
expense as a condition of approval; only members of the three lots are involved in 

the development; Mr. Lane who has the benefit of the road would not be a part of it; 
there would be an annual assessment of the management of the road, tree trimming 
and for the drainage system associated with the roadway; has its own federal ID 

number and account number; funds deposited; Borough can ask for proof of funds 
deposited; document filed with the Bergen County Clerk with the book of deeds; it is 

on a seller’s disclosure when the property is listed for sale; the restrictions in the 
document and the corporation binds the land; running with the land forever; the 
only way to disband the Homeowner’s Association is to go to the Mayor and Council 

to take it over; if no funds are deposited in two years or if the association fails to 
maintain the drainage, the Borough has the right to come in and say these things 

must be done; if not done in thirty days, the Borough can put a lien on the property; 
the document is not unique; at this time there are no requirements; the benefits the 
Borough gets is a substantial drainage improvement and there will be a handle on 

how it will be maintained in the future. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated Mr. Lane provides the electricity for the well. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated there is a provision regarding easements. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated the well is on his property. 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 15 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the well is in the right of way; the Lanes provide electricity for 

the well to be run. 
 

Mr. Madaio: asked if everyone was using the same well. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated everyone would have their own; no change to the well 

situation. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked why Lot 2.02 was not included in the agreement; with respect 

to the other property owners that share the right of way, they have rights as well. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated Lot 2.03 doesn’t have a right. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated an HOA is being created for three homes when fives homes 

are affected. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated they are not putting a burden on them as an expense. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if they could be part of the agreement but not pay into it. 

 
Chairwoman Vierhielig: stated she was concerned they wouldn’t have a choice in 
what was done in the future. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the homeowners would be maintaining the roadway and the 

drainage. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked what would the other homeowners do if the HOA 

decided they wanted to pave the road. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it can be placed in the resolution that they come back before 

the Board for any improvements they want to make. 
 

Mayor Bivona: asked if there would be enough money in the account if the roadway 
were washed out. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated if there were not enough money in the account, everyone 
would get charged equally. 

 
Mr. Lazerowitz: asked about bonding. 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated that had been done before; concerned there needs to be 
sufficient funding at all times; doesn’t want the Borough to have to pay substantial 
funds and put liens on properties. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated he understood the Mayor’s concerns; can devise language for 

that purpose. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 16 

Mr. Madaio: asked what Mr. Lane would do if he had a problem with curbing or 
drainage. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated he would contact the Borough. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated this issue is occurring in several locations throughout the 
Borough; it is a murky issue; when homeowners are not part of an association they 

are just bystanders. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated they are bystanders now without any agreement. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated the Board is trying to envision how this will work in the next 

twenty years not how it has worked in the past. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked about Lot 1. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated that lot does not provide access to the right of way. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated it goes across the property. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated that right of way is not for his benefit. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the homeowners on the other side of the right of 

way can use the 16 ft. 
 

Mr. Lauber: stated it was needed at the time or else the lots would not have been 
big enough. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked for confirmation that the 16 ft. right of way can’t do 
anything for anyone. 
 

Mr. Sheppard: stated if they obtained it from the owner; as of right now, they can 
access it because it is a right of way but they can’t improve it without permission. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it is a private right of way only to Lot 2.02. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated it provides access to Lot 2.02, which is unnecessary because 
Woodside Terrace has the same thing. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated that was correct; they are not dealing with this right of way; in 
his search, he did not find rights to the top piece; will check again. 

 
Mr. Sheppard: stated they took it with the intention of it being a road; as a flag lot it 
is only a driveway. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated the Borough’s ordinance states they need an improved 

roadway. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 17 

Mr. Madaio: stated the applicant is seeking a variance that they are not on an 
improved roadway. 

 
Mayor Bivona: asked what was the hardship. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the benefits outweigh the detriments. 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated he was talking about the roadway not the drainage. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated there will be improvements to the area. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the Board was leaning towards having the applicant pave 600 

ft. to get into the property and make it a Borough standard road; the applicant can 
only pave 16 ft. 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated if it were to be paved it would need appropriate drainage. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: stated it is known that hard surfaces create problems with drainage; 
seems to be working except for isolated problems at Lot 2.02; the applicant’s 
engineer is saying it can be solved and Ms. Boland is in agreement. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated when the last application was approved, it was stated in the 
resolution that if the applicant ever came back they would have to improve the road; 

it was a concern a long time ago; the Borough’s ordinance states that if you are to 
have a subdivision of this type you need an improved roadway with access; an 

improved road would add value; it conflicts with the ordinance and other things; not 
crazy about paved roads; would have no problem if it were wider and graveled; likes 
the gravel but the road is 16 ft. wide for access to four homes and that is a concern. 

 
Mr. Lazerowitz: asked how often the gravel road is replaced. 
 

Mr. Schloesser: stated the last time it was replaced was approximately 2001/2002; 
it is well maintained.  (Please note: Mr. Schloesser was sworn in at the previous 

meeting.) lived at the property all his life; yearly basic maintenance for the roadway; 
grades it back to normal every year; replacement of gravel done in 2001/2002. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated the anticipation is when it is not someone in the family who will 
take care of it. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated this is an important discussion; have to make sure 
the stormwater can be accommodated if the road is paved. 

 
Mayor Bivona: stated the Borough steps in because enough neighbors complain; 
the Borough does all the work and the homeowners are assessed; likes the idea of 

the HOA if it is written the right way. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated future homeowner’s might want it paved; all of this discussion is 
arising because they applicant wants to build another lot. 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 18 

 
Mr. Whitaker: asked if a permit would be required to pave the roadway. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated yes. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated at that point it would be required to meet all drainage 
standards. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated some Board members feel that paving is the way to go at this 
time. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated at the last hearing, if there was a pavement issue, the 

applicant was withdrawing their application. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated the issue is with the width and the drainage. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated he will find the answer as to whether there is an ability to run 

the roadway beyond 16 ft. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated there are a lot of trees to the north; if the area could be widened 

a lot of trees would be removed which would be a detriment. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated he recognizes it is a 16 ft. road which is very, very narrow; 

there will be four homes on this street; the trees can always be replanted. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: asked for the applicant to provide to the Board the number of trees 
that would be removed if the road were widened. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated he would provide that information. 
 
No Additional Board Comments 

 
Mr. James Finkle, 225 Woodside Avenue: sworn in by Mr. Madaio: owns two lots; 

owned current home for one year; since moving in had one neighbor digging a pool 
on one side and a change of driveway on the other side; discussed road 
improvements; wants the road to remain gravel with no curbing. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: summarized open items; will confirm the ability to widen the road 

and provide the count of trees to the north of the widening area; will also provide 
drainage calculations if roadway was widened; further stated, for the purposes of 
the expense that his client is incurring, when the answer is found regarding the 

widening of the roadway and if the Board were prone to approving the application, 
they would show the drainage is improved. 
 

Mr. Madaio: stated there will be no further notice given for this application; the next 
hearing will take place on September 7, 2016, Council Chambers, Franklin Lakes 

Borough Hall, meeting start time of 7:30PM. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 19 

Motion to carry the Schloesser/Mansmann application to the regular Board 
meeting of September 7, 2016: Lazerowitz, Sheppard 

All in Favor 
 

Mr. Whitaker: granted an extension of time through September 8, 2016. 
 

 
Please note: a five minute recess was taken at this time: 10:00PM 

 
Meeting reconvened at 10:05PM 
 

Roll Call: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman 
Vierheilig, Messrs. Lazerowitz, Linz, Sheppard 

 

 
Danza Crest, LLC, Preliminary Major Subdivision, 85 Pulis Avenue, Block 
2701, Lot 3 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated this application was for a three lot subdivision; property is 
currently a single family lot; all the lots are conforming; no variance relief is sought; 

soil movement application submitted because of the roadway being proposed; under 
the MLUL, when an applicant meets all the requirements the Board shall approve 

the subdivision with no variances; their engineer is present to testify as to meeting 
the standards set forth in the Borough ordinances; has not had the benefit to review 
the reports from Boswell dated 6/8/16 and 6/28/16 regarding drainage; Dr. 

Pazwash has determined the lots can conform to the requirements of the NJ 
stormwater management regulations. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated the application can be deemed complete. 
 

Motion to deem the application complete and open the public hearing: 
Lazerowitz, Sheppard 
All in Favor 

 
Mr. Mark Palus, MAP Engineering: sworn in by Mr. Madaio: previously testified; 

qualified as an expert in the field of engineering; he prepared the plans which were 
submitted with the application; final revision date of 4/20/16; the lot is just under 
4 acres; currently has a single family home on the property; serviced by septic and 

an individual well; proposing to remove the existing home and septic and abandon 
the well; a new public right of way is proposed; sheet 3 of the plans shows Bella 
Court; the right of way will come off of Pulis and provide access to two of the three 

lots proposed; Lot 3.01 would have access from Woodside; there will be a 25 ft. wide 
dedication; also a 25 ft. wide dedication on Pulis; this is in line with what the 

County has requested for the adjacent property; the proposed development will 
create three individual building lots in the A40 zone; single family homes proposed 
on each lot; sheet 5 of 7; individual grading plan for each lot; the homes shown are 

conceptual in nature; the lots proposed are viable lots; lots shown are 50x100; each 
home will be equipped with a subsurface disposal system; test holes done on all 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 20 

properties; very good results; no water table; no ledge rock; the Health Department 
witnessed the testing; to that extent, there are no limitations to the development of 

the site; the topography is relatively gentle; there are no slopes in excess of 15%; 
there is a ridge that runs through the property; comes from the Woodside/Pulis 

intersection and goes south to adjacent Lot 1; bulk of the property drains to the SW 
corner of the property today; from a drainage standpoint, proposing a cul-de-sac 
bulb and all the drainage would go to the bulb; would collect in a SW inlet and pipe 

to a recharge system which would be underneath the pavement portion of the cul-
de-sac; submitted calculations that this approach would meet the requirements of 
the NJRSIS; also proposing individual seepage pits to be created; sized to handle a 

100-year storm event; when the systems are put in they have an overflow; 
unfortunately there is no existing drainage near this property; no point of 

connections; thought about the possibility of the system failing; in that event, the 
water would continue to the SW corner of the property as it does today; what is 
unique is that they proposed another storage area in the back corner of the 

property; going to remove topsoils in that area; in essence they are creating a 
secondary recharge basin; this is a belt and suspenders approach; the system in the 

back has been sized to handle all the water in a 100-year storm if the other system 
fails; taking full responsibility for all water on their property; portion of the property 
will run off to the south; in regards to reducing the grading area to Lot 1 

calculations have been submitted; there is public gas on Pulis and the new homes 
would be connected to that; overhead electric, cable, phone are down Pulis; will be 
run underground; zoning information provided for each lot; all conforming; no 

variances sought; the roadway meets all RSIS requirements; classified as a cul-de-
sac; proposing a cartway width of 24 ft. and curbing; the right of way width is 

required to be 8 ft. on either side of the cartway; they have a 40 ft. right of way; 
street is 100% conforming per RSIS; proposing Belgian Block curbing; showed the 
ingress and egress and the sight distances; meets the sight distance requirements; 

gently sloped property; road will have a mild slope; gave soil movement calculations; 
building a road that is 200 ft. long and is moving about 50 cu. yds. of soil; the 
maximum slope of the road is 2.8%; gave the soil moving numbers; had the 

opportunity to review the drainage report of June 28, 2016 from Boswell; their 
recommendations and suggestions will be accommodated on a revised plan; a water 

quality device will be added in the right of way; the report stated there was a 
redundancy with the installation of the seepage pits; are still going to stick with 
them; easier to maintain; soils throughout the property were excellent; those were 

the main issues in Dr. Pazwash’s letter. 
 

Mr. Linz: stated he noticed they have wells; asked if city water was considered. 
 
Mr. Palus: stated there is no city water; walked the site; no indication of it; no fire 

hydrant anywhere near the area. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if this would be a public or private road. 

 
Mr. Palus: stated it would be a publicly dedicated roadway. 

 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 21 

Mr. Sheppard: asked who would be responsible for the stormwater detention 
system under the roadway. 

 
Mr. Palus: stated it is part of the applicant’s expense; part of the Borough’s 

maintenance; further stated that most of the water is coming from the road; the 
water quality device will help keep the dirt out of the system; the Borough has a 
vacuum truck to clean out the inlets. 

 
Mr. Sheppard: stated he is concerned with silt; probably will have maintenance; 
asked if the County would be responsible for the maintenance. 

 
Mr. Palus: stated it will be the Borough’s responsibility under the stormwater 

management regulations; further stated there are certain things that can be done; 
the inlet at the end of the road can have a flow guard filter; it will still have to be 
maintained but it will catch the silt before it can leave the inlet; all helps in reducing 

silts from getting into the recharge system. 
 

Mr. Sheppard: stated this system is significantly different in terms of maintenance; 
probably at a higher cost as well. 
 

Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if there was any maintenance associated with the 
overflow area. 
 

Mr. Palus: stated no; that should never be used; system in the back is just sand; no 
structure; fail safe system. 

 
Ms. Boland: asked how someone would be stopped from filling in this area. 
 

Mr. Palus: stated an easement could be placed around it. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it could be a deed restriction; there would be a berm in that 

area and the berm would remain. 
 

Mr. Madaio: asked if the system becomes the Borough’s responsibility. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated yes. 

 
Mr. Palus: stated the individual lots would have their own seepage pits. 

 
Mr. Lauber: asked if not having a cul-de-sac was considered. 
 

Mr. Palus: stated with no cul-de-sac awkward lots are created, which would require 
variances; looked at many different options. 
 

Ms. Boland: asked it Mr. Palus looked at the idea of all three lots accessing the cul-
de-sac. 

 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 22 

Mr. Palus: showed the three proposed lots; Lot 3.01 accesses Woodside; in order to 
get it to access Bella Court they would have to move the property line to Bella Court; 

the 65 ft. setback shifts and it bumps into the property line; it would then require a 
variance. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated if the Board did not want to consider the three lots accessing off 
of Bella Court, asked if the house could be further away from the intersection; 

reverse it. 
 
Mr. Palus: stated it is a conceptual home; the property slopes from Pulis down 

Woodside; when they put a house on the property generally you put the house on 
the high side; still a good distance away from the edge of Plus. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: stated the house on Lot 3.03 would not have a big backyard. 
 

Mr. Palus: stated that was correct. 
 

Mr. Pullaro: asked why Bella Court couldn’t slide more to the east to give that lot 
more property. 
 

Mr. Palus: stated they went through ten different iterations of laying out the lots; 
this is the point they got to that is variance free; once the cul-de-sac bulb is moved 
and the lot lines, they could not come up with another conforming configuration. 

 
Mr. Pullaro: stated he wondered if the Board would consider a variance. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated if the lot line was changed on the plan, it would cause a width 
or frontage problem on Lot 3.02; it would create two slightly minor variances; the 

Board might be agreeable from deviating from the zoning standards. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated he felt Lot 3.03 should get more of a backyard and Lot 3.01 can 

have access on Bella Court. 
 

Mr. Whitaker: stated, as a finding of fact, this variance free application meets all 
the requirements of the Borough but they can determine there is a better 
alternative; has concerns about appeals. 

 
Mr. Madaio: stated that can be dealt with; worse case scenario is a re-notice; it is in 

the applicant’s interest to carry this application in order to accommodate a design 
which might require minor variances but would provide access off of the cul-de-sac 
and increase the rear yard dimension. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated if that was the consensus of the Board then they would carry 
the application. 

 
Motion to carry the Danza Crest application to the regular Board meeting of 

September 21, 2016: Lazerowitz, Lauber 
All in Favor 



Planning Board Minutes, August 17, 2016 23 

 
Ms. Boland: stated a resident had called stating the tax map lot area is different 

than the lot area shown on the plans; assuming the lot area on the plans are 
correct; would like the deed in support of that. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated he would supply the deed. 
 

Mr. Fred White, 105 Pulis Avenue: sworn in by Mr. Madaio; next door neighbor to 
the subject property; asked if the river near the property had been considered for 
drainage. 

 
Mr. Palus: stated the Ho-Ho-Kus Brook crosses Woodside Avenue; it is 600 ft. from 

the property; described having to run drainage down Woodside Avenue. 
 
Please note: Mr. Sheppard has left the meeting at this time: 10:40PM 

 
Mr. White: stated he had concerns about the project coming too close to a house 

near the property. 
 
Mr. Palus: explained that they were not coming near the house Mr. White was 

concerned about. 
 
Mr. Lauber: asked if there was ever a consideration of not having a cul-de-sac. 

 
Mr. Whitaker: stated he would not do 3 lots fronting on Pulis; granted an extension 

of time through September 22, 2016; will submit a list of proposed names for the 
cul-de-sac. 
 

Motion to adjourn: Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber 
All in Favor 
 

Meeting adjourned at 10:45PM 
 

 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 

JoAnn Carroll 
Recording Secretary 

August 31, 2016 
 


